
   
      DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
                                            FY2012 RFA 
                                          ADDENDUM #2, as of July 22, 2011  

                        
                    All addendums apply to Book 1, 2 and 3 
 
         Questions from the July 20, 2011 FY2012 RFA Workshop 
 
Any updates to this RFA, including responses to questions, will be posted on-line at the DHCD website.  
Prospective applicants should check the DHCD website regularly for updates at  
www.miamidade.gov/ced/request_RFA.asp.  

 
1) Question: Can CDBG funding be used for Storm Water studies, is it an eligible 
activity?  
 
Answer: No, funding to perform environmental studies as a standalone activity is not eligible.  
 
2) Question: Can CDBG funds be utilized to Rehab a Community/Senior Center located 
in West Miami?   
 
Answer: The rehabilitation of a public facility that is open to the general public is eligible 
under US HUD regulations.  
 
3) Question: What timeframe is this contract period covering? Which 
projects/categories may go beyond the 12 months?  
 
Answer: The contract period is a 12 month calendar year. Beginning January 1, 2012 through 
December 31, 2012, Public Service and Economic Development projects the funding covers 
one year. The funding for Construction projects may cover up to a 24 month period.  
 
4) Question: Do you have to be identified as a 501(c) (3) as a non- profit entity to be a 
recipient of CDBG funding?    
 
Answer: Yes, the application requests your entity’s most current Tax Exempt Status Letter or 
letter of application to the IRS.  The type of activity being proposed will affect the need for this 
status.  
 
5) Question: How many applications can be submitted? 
 
Answer: Applicants are limited to three (3) applications per funding source.  Those who 
submit more than three (3) applications will be penalized five (5) points, which shall be 
deducted from each application submitted.  
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6) Question: Please define the US HUD eligibility code as it relates to the activity/scope 
of work being proposed by the agency?  
 
Answer: The list of the US HUD eligibility code(s) is detailed on the DHCD website 
miamimdade.gov/ced Part 2 Attachment # 6.  
 
7) Question: Does the applicant need to notify the department if the financial 
beneficiaries change during the application /RFA process? (Housing Book 2)  
 
Answer: The application must fully disclose any person or entity defined as a financial 
beneficiary pursuant to Rule 67-48.002, F.A.C. “Financial Beneficiary” means one who is to 
receive a financial benefit of the total development cost (including deferred fees). The financial 
beneficiary definition includes any party, which meets the above criteria, such as the 
developer and its principals and principals of the applicant entity. This definition does not 
include third party lenders, Housing Credit Syndicators, Credit Enhancers who are regulated 
by a state or federal agency. “Principal” means an applicant, any general partner of an 
applicant, and any officer, director, or any shareholder of any applicant or shareholder of any 
general partner of an applicant. FAILURE TO ACCURATELY AND FULLY DISCLOSE ALL 
INFORMATION REQUESTED BELOW WILL RESULT IN THE REJECTION OF THE 
APPLICATION.  
 
8) Question: If you are submitting three different applications can they be all in one 
binder? 
 
Answer: No each project/ activity has to have one original binder and six copies in separate 
binders.   
 
9) Question: The high priority needs for the NRSA’s, can be found where?  
 
Answer: DHCD website miamimdade.gov/ced Part 2 Attachment # 6  
 
10) Question: If you are a tenant in a facility that has a long term lease can the entity 
apply for funds?  
 
Answer: Yes. Although we encourage having site control, if you can document the long term 
commitment to the site the tenant/entity can apply.  
 
11) Question: Can CDBG funds be used for funding equipment for a Senior Center?  
 
Answer: The eligibility criteria for this request would depend on the type of activity related 
equipment. The purchase of equipment, fixtures, motor vehicles, furnishings, or other personal 
property not an integral structural fixture is generally ineligible; an example, purchasing a 
stove for a senior meals program, could be an eligible cost. 
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12) Question: If the applicant is proposing a Public Service activity, do you have to be a 
501(c) (3) or can you be 501(c) (4),  
 
Answer: No, to be the recipient of Federal funding the nonprofit must be a 501(c) (3). 
 
13) Question: Are the following items; Snacks and Field trips considered an eligible 
activity under the CDBG Public Service category?  
 
Answer: These items would not be funded as a standalone activity. If approved for funding 
your agency would negotiate with appropriate staff all the necessary items needed to perform 
the activity.  
 
14) Question: Is counseling an eligible activity under the Public Service category? 
 
Answer: Yes that activity is acceptable under our US HUD Matrix Code.  
 
15) Question: Do you have to submit your agency’s intake forms as part of the RFA 
application?  
 
Answer: No, not in this process. If your project is funded, an annual monitoring review will be 
conducted by a DHCD Project Manager. Participant related documentation will be reviewed at 
that time.  
 
16) Question: What type of letter/agreement are you looking for as evidence of a 
partnership? Could these letters be contingent on our funding?  
 
Answer:  Joint Venture Agreement and /or Partnership Agreement. This agreement  may be 
subject to approval of funding by the County.  
 
17) Question: Under the HOMEBUYER COUNSELING SERVICES category how did the county 
determine the designated areas of North, Central and South?  
 
Answer:  No, the areas are not specifically designated only specified as regions. 
 
18) Question: Is the 20% set aside for Section 8 a guarantee?  
 
Answer:  Currently there is no guarantee that Miami Dade County will reserve the right to set 
aside 20% in the development for Section 8  
 
19) Question: Please define the term Emergency Funding? (Book 3 SURTAX)  
 
Answer:  Applicants requiring final, emergency funding needed to complete projects due to 
an unexpected financial occurrence or market conditions and “but for” additional County 
funds, affordable housing projects would not be completed.  
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20) Question: What will happen if the applicants requested the HOMEBUYER COUNSELING 
SERVICES funds for the 3 designated areas do not qualify?  
 
Answer:  Consideration will be given to the three regions based on qualifying applications. 
 
21) Question: Please clarify the documentation needed for  Question B-2 (Housing 
Book Two) HOMEBUYER COUNSELING SERVICES “The number of participants who have completed 
workshops  conducted  by  this  agency  that  included  a minimum  of  two  budget  counseling  training 
sessions,(Attach detailed supporting documentation of agency’s experience)”  
 
Answer:  Please specify the number of people that received two budget counseling sessions 
along with the workshop training. 
 
22) Question: Does the 16% Developer Fee include the cost of acquisition?  
 
Answer: The 16% Developer Fee excludes the cost of land and the cost of an acquisition  
 
23) Question: Under the Public Service category will funding for a 3 month summer 
youth program be eligible?  
  
Answer: Although a summer program is an eligible activity, DHCD does not fund for less than 
a 12 month time period. The summer program could be a part of an expanded y all year round 
program.  
 
24) Question: Can in-kind services be utilized as leveraging? 
 
Answer: Yes, as long as the applicant can document the funding.  
 
25) Question: Can an entity identified as a non profit 501(c) (3) be the fiscal agent for a 
501(c) (4) as a fiscal agent?   
 
Answer: No.  Miami-Dade County will not accept RFA applications for third party 
consultants, Commercial Revitalization Program (CRP) activities, Project Management, 
Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP), Charter or Private Schools, or the National O25)  
 
26) Question: Can the space where the applicant has been asked for an e-mail address 
is increased so the entire address can be written?  
 
Answer: Yes, the DHCD/CAA IT staff person will adjust accordingly.  

27) Question:   The Surtax Application limits the request to 30% of the available funds.  

Is the 30% calculation based off the total $11.9 million, or 30% of their category? 

Answer:  The 30% is based on the total of $11.9 million.  Therefore, no request can be for 
more than $3,570,000.   

 


